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Forestry training began with the idea expressed by
Conserator Frederick D'A. Vincent from the Imperial
Forest Service of India after his inspection of Victorian
forestry in 1887.

By 1890, it was deemed that a local training school was
necessary because overseas forestry staff, if available,
could not"adapt thenselves to the new and strange
conditions of forestry in this country

The Victorian School of Forestry (VSF), also
affectionately known as "The School on the Hill", was
opened in October 1910 at Creswick. Other sites had
been considered including Dookiepngerenongand
Beechworth.

The school buildings and grounds Heeenthe former
Creswick Hospital, which was built in 1863 during the
gold rush.

The initial class of six students were already in training
as foresters under a system of supervised prattic
work or were appointed from work crews. They
graduated in 1912.

Entrance to the school was by competitive examination
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may question this assertion ??

In 1930 the Forests Commission which administered
Creswick deliberately elected to forge stramgies
with the University of Melbourne rather than
relinquish its forestry training to the Australian
National University in Canberra as other State forest
senices had done. There is an intriguing batdry of
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This fruitful long-term partnership with the University

of Melbourne enabled many VSF Diploma graduates to
completed I OK St 2 NJan PHDS, HikIdifeis
prepared a thesis to gain a Diploma of Forestry
(Victoria).

species of plants, fungand insects, gathered over
more than a century. Among the more important
samples arespecimens prepared by Government
Botanist Baron Sir Ferdinand von Mueller in 1874 and
Dr.James Hamlyn Willis.

In addition to rigorous academic study, the school put
a very strong focus on preparing students suited to
Victorian conditions and on equippinthem with
practical skills of forestry in the schools 1000 ha
demonstration forest.

For example, horsemanship was included in the
curriculum at Creswick up until the 1950s, while
regular fieldwork performing thinning with their trusty
plumb axes, or cuihg firewood, shovelling gravel to fill
potholes on local forest roads, tending the many picnic
grounds in the bush, planned burning in autumn,
measuring plantation trees, raising seedlings in the
nearby nursery and then planting them out in winter
were al important parts of the course.

In the immediate post WW?2 period, the school
flourished with an increased annual intake of
graduates, up from the usual 6 to 12, to meet the
demands on Victoria's forest resources and the timber
needs of the housing boom.

Sudents generally entered the school owrery

generoudully-funded scholarships, but in return, were
. "bonded" to work for the Forests Commission upon
completion of their course. Fanany,it turned out to
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For many firsiyear studens, this was their first
experience of living in a country town and sport was an
important part of the social calendar. With the larger
intake of students after WW2, including four -ex
servicemen, the entire school (including a few fing)
rallied togetherto mount a successful football team
ng jn the Clunes District League. Records show

e pléiléjl'frgm 192694 590%N " Wwon the Grand

Final against Clunes in 1950.

What is notable is the longevity and commitment of
the staff. One of thelongestserving Principals was
Edwin James Semmens from 1928 to 1951, while
senior lecturer Billo Litster was at the school from 1928

The academic standard of the Creswick Diploma course t0 1969 including 18 years as Principal. Both Alan Eddy

was ensured by a Board of Examiners initially headed
by the Professor of Botany at Melbourne University,
Alfred James Ewart.

By the1980s, the school herbarium hadcumulateda
very significant collection of over 10,000 specimens
representing between 2,500 and 3,000 different

and Bob Orr also had very enduring and distinguished
careers at the school.

Tradtionally, VSF had traditionally been promoted as a
"Gateway to a Man's Career". Although a few had
enquired over the decades, the first group of women
entered the Forestry School in 1976.




The first tertiary forestry school in AustraldSFvas
administerad by the Forests Commission until 1980,
when it amalgamated with the University of
Melbourne.

From 1910 to 1980, 522 students completed the
Diploma of Forestry at VSF.

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Victorian_School_of Fo
restry

The rear quadrangle.

https://vhd.heritagecancil.vic.gov.au/places/326
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VSF was opened on 29 October 1910. Photo of Tremearne House.
Source: FCRPA Collection.

collection.

The School's main gates were dedicated on 10 Octif&2 toSir
Alexander Peacock, who was the Minister of Forests between
19091913 when the school was founded. Source: FCRPA
Collection.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=I9v11onAOac

The old Creswick hospital buildings were built in 1863 during the
gold rush and are listed with tRéctorian Heritage Council

https://vhd.heritagecouncil.vic.gov.au/places/326
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A group of VSF students from 1950 in school uniform consisting of
riding breeches, leggings, @adblazer.

Back: John Slater, Jack Channon, John MacDonald, Leon Pederick ~ Botany lab. tR: John MacDaid, Joe Adamand Jack Channon.
and Ken Nicholls. Centre: Athol Hodgson, Phil MacDonald, Len Source: FCRPA Collection
Laing, Bob Niggl and Alan Tolsher. Front: David Paterson and
Barry Johnston.

All were to make a significant contution to forestry and fire,
with two becoming Chief Fire Officers. Source: FCRPA Collection.

https://www.victoriasforestryheritage.org.au/peoplel/adies
about/216-hodgsonrathol.html

Physics lab.1LR: Brian McNeil, Bob Gorman, Max Calsaferri and
Ron Hodges. Part of the1945 intake. Source: FCRPA Collection.

The school museutmeld an extensive collection of forest products.
Source: FCRPA Collection.

The school had well-resourced library. Alf Leslie and Norman
Endaott ¢ 1940. Source: FCRPA Collection.

Preparing a mounted insect collection was part of seegrat
studies. Source: VSF Collection
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All the latest IT equipment was available to students like this 1950
Odhner piawheel calculator. Source: VSF Collection

All accommodation, housekeeping, meals and tuition were
provided at the School. Although theeals were the stuff of
legend.Students generally entered the schoolemy generous
fully-funded scholarships, but in return, were "bonded" to work for
the Forests Commission upon completion of their cdiorsa
number of yearsFor many, itturned out 2 6 S Hor-a OF SIS S
Photo: Arthur Webb.

In what looks like a very staged photo, students check the growth
of a pine tree in the school demonstration forest.

Pulling the cart for obligatorfieldworkin the school
demonstration forest. Brackenbury Road, overlooking St Georges
Lake "Govvy Dam". Circa 1930. Source: FRCPA Collection.

Practical training in the operation of fire pumps was included.
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Field excursion to Mt Wills in the ever faithduD 2 2y . dza € ©®
were two of them. They were huge Bedford trucks that had been
converted to carry 12 passengers. They were old and
uncomfortable to riden and had been previously owned by Langi
Kal Kal Prison. Photo: lan Hastings 1968.

By the 1980s, the school herbarium heléro0000 specimens,
with between 2,500 and 3,000 different species of plants, fungi
andinsects, gathered over more than a century. This one is Grey
Ironbark collected from Bendigo by Winfred B. Wright in 1947.

Winifred Wright (lateiWinty Calder) wantedo study forestry but

was told that women were not permitted to attend the school.

Instead, she completed a degree in Botany at the University of
Melbourne in 1953 and went on to gairyal & (i S NQia 19RS I NB S

Ironicallysheended up lecturing many foreg students at Footy was aig part of the school sporting and social calendar.
MelbourneUni.Source: VSF The 1948 team with Trevor Arthur as Captain had a disappointing
Collectiofttps://omeka.cloud.unimelb.edu.au/cchc/files/original/ season, finishing fifth (out of six) with a record of 3 wins and 11
dce9306a275e1681602788a6e554479e.pdf losses. However, they went on to win the 1950 Grand Final against

Cluneslinformation supplied by Leon Pederick.
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https://victoriasforestryheritage.org.au/images/externalarticles2/
pederickvsf.pdf

Asignificant feature of the forestry course was the frequency and
diversity of practical field excursions. In this case a visit to
Tasmanian forests with Professor John Chinner. Photo: lan

Hastingsg 1971.

The British Hotel was one of three pubs in town, and a regular
haunt of VSF students after a winning game of football.
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